
 
AGENDA 
 
 
DGRI BOARD 
OF ADVISORS 
 
Board Members: 
 
Rick Baker • Mayor Rosalynn Bliss •  Daryl Delabbio • Kayem Dunn • Howard Hansen • Brian Harris • Bob Herr  
Ray Kisor • Birgit Klohs • Brandy Moeller • Nikos Monoyios •Jon Nunn • Doug Small • Greg Sundstrom • Lynee Wells 

 
 

Page 1 
      

 
Thursday, February 11, 2016 
10:00 a.m. Meeting 
29 Pearl Street, NW Suite #1

 

 
 

1. Call to Order         Motion  Dunn 

2. Approve Minutes from November 9, 2015 DGRI Board Meeting (10:01) Motion  Dunn 
 

3. Approve 2016 Cost Allocations (10:03)     Motion  Larson 
 

4. Approve Alliance Appointments (10:18)     Motion  Larson / Various 
 

5. Experience GR Priorities (10:38)      Info Item Small 
 

6. Mayor of City of GR Priorities (10:48)     Info Item Bliss 
 

7. Tree Canopy Working Group Presentation (10:58)    Info Item Kelly 
 

8. President & CEO Report (11:08)      Info Item Larson 
 

9. Board of Advisors Discussion (11:13) 
 

10. Old Business 
 

11. New Business 
 

12. Public Comment 
 

13.  Adjourn 
 

 



           UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

 
 

Board of Advisors Meeting 
 

November 9, 2015 
 
 
1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 1:40 p.m. by Chair Ray Kisor. 
 
2. Attendance            
 

Present:  Daryl Delabbio, Kayem Dunn, Brian Harris, Howard Hansen, Bob Herr, Ray Kisor, 
Birgit Klohs, Brandy Moeller, Nick Monoyios, Jon Nunn, Doug Small, Greg Sundstrom 
 
Absent:  Rick Baker, Mayor George Heartwell, Lynee Wells 
 
Others Present:  Kristopher Larson (DGRI President & CEO), Murphy Ackerman (DGRI 
Office Manager), Tim Kelly, Andy Guy, Annamarie Buller, Bill Kirk (DGRI Staff), Dick 
Wendt, Jim Harger, Steve Zaagman, Sara Vanderwerff, and others.  
 

3. Approve Minutes from July 9, 2015 DGRI Board Meeting 
 
Motion: Brian Harris, supported by Brandy Moeller, moved approval of the July 9, 2015 minutes 
as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

4.  Elect Chair and Vice-Chair    
Mr. Kisor informed the Board that this would be his last meeting as Chair. Mr. Kisor said on 
behalf of the executive committee he would like to recommend Kayem Dunn as Chair and 
Nick Monoyois as Vice- Chair. Mr. Harris asked if the nominees have accepted the 
nominations. Ms. Dunn and Mr. Monoyios said they have accepted the nomination.  
 
Motion: Howard Hansen, supported by Brian Harris, moved to elect Kayem Dunn as Chair and 
Nick Monoyios as Vice-Chair of the DGRI Board of Advisors.  Motion carried unanimously.   



Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. 
Minutes – November 9, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 
Ms. Dunn thanked Mr. Kisor for his service in helping to form DGRI and helping to identify 
the function of the new organization.  

 
5. Approve DGRI FOIA Procedures and Guidelines   

Mr. Larson explained that the organization needs to assign a FOIA administrator under the 
FOIA guidelines. Mr. Larson said this will help communicate and demonstrate how to file and 
request a FOIA and give a level of clarity for how it is administered. Mr. Larson said that Mr. 
Wendt has been requested as administrator. Mr. Wendt explained that because the 
organization receives most of its funding from public funding it is required to comply with 
FOIA guidelines. Mr. Wendt added that after being approved by this Board, the guidelines 
will be posted to the DGRI website. Mr. Delabbio asked if this is a result of the change in the 
FOIA stature. Mr. Wendt answered yes.  
 
Motion: Brandy Moeller, supported Howard Hansen, moved to approve the DGRI FOIA 
procedures and guidelines as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
6.  Authorize Contract with Block by Block 

Mr. Larson said the DID has considered and tendered this contract, but because the contract 
will technically be with DGRI and not the DID, the contract needs to be approved by this 
Board. Mr. Larson added that legal counsel is still working to finalize the contract. Ms. Klohs 
asked if this board has the legal authority to tender a contract because it is listed as a board of 
advisors as opposed to a board of directors. Mr. Wendt explained that this board has the same 
legal protections as a board of directors.  
 
Motion: Bob Herr, supported by Ray Kisor, moved to authorize the President & CEO to 
negotiate and execute a contract with Mydatt (dba Block by Block) of up to 3 years for an 
amount not to exceed $475,000 per year. Motion carried unanimously.   

 
7. Accept and Recommend GR Forward Strategic Plan  

Mr. Larson explained that this is the third of seven committees or boards to approve the GR 
Forward Plan. Mr. Larson said that both the steering committees have unanimously approved 
the plan, and the Monroe North TIFA and DDA Boards will entertain a motion before the 
Planning Commission meeting on Thursday. Mr. Kelly gave a presentation and overview of 
GR Forward. Mr. Kelly explained that the focus of today’s presentation will be to focus on 
what has changed in the document since it was last presented. Mr. Kelly explained that overall 
DGRI staff held over 360 events and had over 4,400 participants in the plan. Mr. Kelly noted 
that this was more participants than the Green Grand Rapids and Voices and Visions plans 
combined. Mr. Kelly said that through public comment staff realized that there was a need for 
more depth and thought to diversity and inclusion throughout the plan and was happy that the 
community was able to help solidify the changes to the visions and goals. Mr. Kelly took a 
moment to revisit the six goals and show where changes had been made in the plan. Mr. 



Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. 
Minutes – November 9, 2015 
Page 3 
 

Larson gave an overview of all of the events that have occurred since the first draft was 
released. Mr. Larson explained that a key focus was to engage and expound on the diversity 
and inclusion piece. Mr. Larson said that in addition to the events that were held, he was able 
to engage with many key leaders in the community through one on one conversation. Mr. 
Larson explained that there were more comments regarding diversity and inclusion and rowing 
due to more focused outreach opportunities surrounding those topics. Mr. Larson also noted 
that some of the more operational comments will be deferred to the alliances or the 
organization. Mr. Larson gave a high level overview of all of the changes that have been made 
in the plan and explained how the community can find responses to their comments. Mr. 
Larson explained that this document was made available to honor our commitment to 
transparency. Mr. Larson said that there is now a new preamble in the vision statement that 
helps to outline and present diversity and inclusion at the forefront of the plan. This piece also 
includes new strategies, measures and targets for how DGRI can begin to measure change. 
While these may be ambitious goals, they have begun to yield partnerships in the community 
to help see through and measure these changes. Mr. Larson shared the new housing goal and 
explained that it has been modified to align with the City’s Great Housing Strategies plan. 
After reviewing all of the changes that have been made to the document, Mr. Larson shared 
all of the projects that have already begun and gave an overview of all of the implementation 
partners that have already committed to seeing this plan come to fruition. Mr. Larson said that 
partners are crucial because this is not simply DGRI’s plan but a plan for the entire city and 
community. Mr. Hansen said that as a steering committee member, he was blown away by the 
outreach, transparency and depth of this planning process. Mr. Hansen said he is excited to 
see what’s to come and honored to have been a part of the process.  
 
Motion: Howard Hansen, supported by Nick Monoyios, moved to approve GR Forward and 
recommend adoption by the City of Grand Rapids as an amendment to the City Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Monoyios commended staff for their process and commitment to being inclusive of the 
entire community. Ms. Moeller said that she attended outreach meetings and was continually 
impressed and pleased with the approach. Mr. Sundstrom said that he was proud of the 
community as a whole for participating in this process and thanked staff for their initiative. Ms. 
Dunn thanked Mr. Larson for taking the time to listen to the community and reflecting it in 
the document. Mr. Harris added that this plan sets a new benchmark for the community and is 
excited to bring the plan to the DDA Board for approval.  Ms. Klohs said she was pleased with 
the new preamble and is looking forward to seeing this plan affect an even broader reach 
outside of the downtown.  Mr. Larson thanked staff for all of their work on the plan and 
specifically Mr. Kelly for leading the process.   

 
8. Adopt Proposed Organizational Performance Measures 

Mr. Larson explained that the executive committee has worked to create a list of measures to 
help demonstrate and communicate the high level of performance that DGRI is striving for. 
Mr. Larson explained that this proposal outlines goals and metrics for each of the funding 
bodies. Ms. Klohs asked how DGRI will measure a “welcoming and inclusive Downtown”. Mr. 



Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. 
Minutes – November 9, 2015 
Page 4 
 

Larson explained that this can be measured through surveys as well as partnerships with local 
institutions and organizations to set benchmarks and baselines.  
 
Motion: Brandy Moeller, supported by Bob Herr, moved to adopt the proposed organization 
performance measures as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
9.  President & CEO Report 

DGRI (11/9) 
• Will appoint next Chair and Vice Chair 
• Will adopt FOIA guidelines and instructions 
• Will consider Accepting and Recommending Final GR Forward 
• Will consider authorizing contract execution for Maintenance & Beautification 
• Will consider proposed organizational performance measures 

 
DDA / MNTIFA (11/11) 

• Will consider Approving and Recommending Final GR Forward 
 

DID (12/7) 
• Will consider recommendation of FY16 DID Budget 

 
Alliances:  

 
INVESTMENT (11/10) 
 

• Chair: Nikos Monoyios, Long Range Planner @ The Rapid  
• Receiving updates on Pearl St. streetscape, Calder Plaza RFP, and org. metrics 

 

VIBRANCY (10/21) 
 

• Chair – Brandy Moeller, City of Grand Rapids 
• Planning Wintertime events 

 
LIVABILITY (10/26) 
 

• Chair: Lynee Wells, Principal @ Williams & Works 
• Discussed Winter programming schedule & began working on 2016 working group priorities 

DGRI Staff Highlights 
 

Events / Marketing / Communications 
 

DGRI events are in blue. DGRI financially supported events are in orange.  
Outside free events are in purple.  



Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. 
Minutes – November 9, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 

• Window Wonderland – Nov. 6- Nov. 27 
• Ave. for the Arts events – Nov. 6, Dec. 4, Jan. 1, Feb. 5 and Mar. 4 
• Veterans Memorial Day Parade – Nov. 11 
• The Lighting of Downtown – Nov. 20 
• Santa Parade – Nov. 21 
• Turkey Trot – Nov. 26 (not free but we sponsor) 
• RPC Ice-skating and Tree Lighting Opening Ceremony – Dec. 3  
• The Grand Caroling – Dec. 4, 11, 18 
• The Holiday’s Cheer – Dec. 9, 11, 12, 18, 19 
• Hot NYE Party – Dec. 31 
• The Great Skate - Jan. 22-23  
• Speaker Series – TBD 
• Broomball Leagues – Jan. 5-Feb. 16 on Mondays and Tuesdays  
• MKL Jr. Peace March – Jan. 18 
• A Midwinter Night’s Dream – Jan. 30 
• Cannonsburg in the City – Feb. 6 or 13 
• Valent-ICE – Feb. 12-14 
• Taste of Soul Sunday – Feb. 21 
• Hungry Hungry Hippo Tournament – March 6 

 
Planning / Development 

 
• Public Approvals of GR Forward Draft Plan underway – All sights set for Dec 15! 
• HUD Resiliency Grant Application submitted 10/26 
• DID Finding of Necessity approved on 10/27 
• Calder Plaza design RFP released 10/16 
• DGRI working to secure a seat on TIF work group via MEDC  

 
Clean, Safe, and Beautiful 

 
• Collaborating with Westside stakeholders on  recent public safety issues 
• Clean Team transition date – Dec 7, 2015 

 
 
10.     Board of Advisors Discussion 

Mr. Delabbio thanked Mr. Guy for representing DGRI during the HUD grant submission 
process. Ms. Dunn commended Mr. Larson and his staff for their leadership and process for 
the GR Forward plan.  

 
11. Old Business 
 

None.  



Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. 
Minutes – November 9, 2015 
Page 6 
 
  
12. New Business 

None.  
 
13.  Public Comment 

None.  
   
14. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m.   



 



80.71%

2.08% 11.02%

6.19%

2015 Allocated Time Cost Share

DDA MNTIFA DID City

45.08%

11.14%

0.70%

43.08%

DDA

DID

MNTIFA

DGRI

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00%

Relative Share of Time & 
Resources 



 

 

 

79.19%

19.58%

1.24%

2016 DGRI Blended Cost Allocation

DDA DID MNTIFA



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 
 

 


